
Meeting of:  Audit and Governance Committee
Date: Monday, 18th December, 2017
Time: 6.15 pm.
Venue: Rochdale Town Hall, The Esplanade, 

Rochdale, OL16 1AB

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

3.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

4.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

5.  MINUTES 4 - 5

To consider the minutes of Audit and Governance Committee the 
meeting held on Monday 18th September 2017. 

6.  INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTER 2 REPORT 2017/18 6 - 20

To receive an update from Internal Audit for Quarter 2, 2017/18. 

Public Document Pack



7.  GRANT THORNTON ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER FOR ROCHDALE 
BOROUGH COUNCIL 

21 - 31

To consider the Annual Audit Letter from the Council’s external auditor 
to the year ending 31st March 2017. 

8.  GRANT THORNTON - GRANTS LETTER 2016/17 32 - 35

To consider the Certification work for Rochdale Borough Council 
Housing Benefit subsidy claim for the year ended 31st March 2017. 

9.  PEER REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT 36 - 58

To receive information on the peer review of Internal Audit undertaken 
by North West Authorities. 

10.  RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRESS REPORT - Q2 2017/18 59 - 74

To receive information on Risk Management for Quarter 2, 2017/18. 

11.  EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining 
part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 
interest would not be served in publishing the information.  

12.  CODE OF CONDUCT UPDATE 75 - 76

To receive information on work undertaken in relation to Members 
Code of Conduct issues. 

13.  LEGAL UPDATE 77 - 102

To receive information relating to work undertaken by Legal Services. 

Audit and Governance Committee Members
Councillor Andy Bell Councillor Neil Butterworth
Councillor Irene Davidson Councillor James Gartside
Councillor Kieran Heakin Councillor Peter Joinson
Councillor Peter Malcolm Councillor Liam O'Rourke
Councillor Aasim Rashid Ann Taylor
Andrew Underdown



For more information about this meeting, please contact 
Michael Garraway
Governance and Committee Services Officer
01706 924716
michael.garraway@Rochdale.Gov.UK



AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Monday, 18th September 2017

PRESENT:  Councillor Liam O'Rourke (in the Chair); Councillors Bell, 
Butterworth, Davidson, Gartside, Joinson and Rashid

OFFICERS: I Corbridge, J Murphy, M Nixon and C Denyer (Resources 
Directorate)

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE:   G. Mills and D Watson (Grant Thornton UK LLP) 
and one member of the public

APOLOGIES
15 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Heakin, 
Councillor Malcolm, A Taylor, A Underdown, V Bradshaw and D Wilcock.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
16 There were no declarations of interest. 

URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS
17 There were no urgent items of business.

ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
18 There were no private items of business.

MINUTES
19 DECISION:  The minutes of the Audit and Governance Committee 
held on 26th July 2017 be approved as a correct record and signed by the 
Chair.

INTERNAL AUDIT QUARTER 1 REPORT 2017/18
20 The Head of Internal Audit reported to the Committee summarising the 
work of the Internal Audit Team during the first quarter period of 2017/18. 

The Committee was advised that Internal Audit had provided either substantial 
or adequate assurance over the effectiveness of risk management in all the 
audits completed during the period. In addition, Internal Audit had followed up 
on the Data Protection – Subject Access Requests audit which had been 
given a limited assurance rating in December 2016 and confirmed that all the 
agreed actions had now been completed. 

The Committee was further advised that the Counter Fraud Team had 
achieved £116,005 in savings during the period together with 9 sanctions 
including 1 prosecution and 8 fines for fraud.
 
In considering the report Members requested clarification regarding the Data 
Protection and Counter Fraud Team audits outlined in the report. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 5



DECISION – That the report be noted.

INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER
21 The Committee considered a report of the Head of Internal Audit which 
sought approval of the updated Internal Audit Charter. The Public Sector 
Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) require an Internal Audit Charter to be 
approved in order to define Internal Audit’s purpose, authority and 
responsibility. The Charter was required to establish Internal Audit’s position 
within the Council, its reporting lines, authorisation for access to records, 
personnel and physical property relevant to the performance of audit work, 
and defines the scope of Internal Audit activities.

The current Internal Audit Charter had been approved on 26 September 2016 
and since then there have been minor revisions to the PSIAS together with 
changes in the governance and management structures within RBC, all of 
which had prompted the need to update the Internal Audit Charter to ensure it 
remained fit for purpose and supported the current operation and remit of 
RBC Internal Audit.

DECISION – that the updated Audit Charter as detailed in Appendix 1 to 
the submitted report be approved.

RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRESS REPORT - QUARTER 1 2017/18
22 The Committee considered the report of the Acting Director of 
Resources which provided a summary of the Risk Management work during 
Quarter 1 of the 2017/18 year. 

The report advised the Committee with regard to the work undertaken to 
update and improve the risk registers across all Council Services and to 
develop registers for integrated care under the Rochdale Locality Plan. The 
report also provided a summary of the feedback provided by Zurich Insurance 
following the Schools Risk Ranking exercise that they had carried out during 
May 2017. This review had confirmed that Zurich considered the risk 
management quality and arrangements in the schools visited were of a good 
standard, but that there were a few areas of improvement and development 
that would help to enhance existing procedures.

In considering the report Members requested clarification regarding the 
progress of the development of the control which remained under 
development for the community and cohesion strategy and requested that the 
details be circulated to Members once the control was in place.

DECISION – that (1) the report be noted;
(2) the Risk Manager be requested to circulate the details of 

control reference CRR7001 Community and Cohesion Strategy 
communicated and embedded  to Members of the Committee when it 
has been put in place. 

Page 5



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 18th December 2017
Portfolio Councillor Allen Brett 

Cabinet Member for 
Corporate and Resources

Report Author Ian Corbridge
Public/Private Document Public

Internal Audit Quarter 2 Report 2017/18

Executive Summary

1. This report summarises the work of the Internal Audit team during the second 
quarter of 2017/18. Internal Audit was able to provide either substantial or 
adequate assurance over the effectiveness of risk management in all the 
audits completed during the period. In view of the significant amount of 
unplanned time incurred during the first 6 months of the year the percentage 
of the Audit Plan completed to date is slightly behind target. However a full 
review of Audit Plan status and available resource confirms that Internal Audit 
is still on track to complete the Audit Plan by the year end.

The Counter Fraud Team achieved £52,199 in savings during the period 
(cumulative of £168,205 for the first 6 months) together with 5 sanctions 
including 1 formal caution and 4 fines for fraud. 

Recommendation

2. This report is for the information of the Members to confirm the level of 
assurance provided through Internal Audit work of the management of risk.

Reason for Recommendation

3. This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee, in accordance 
with their work programme and overall responsibility for governance, to 
scrutinise Internal Audit coverage during the second quarter of 2017/18 on all 
Services within the Council. The work of RBC Internal Audit is governed by the 
UK Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

Risk Based Audit Approach

10.IInternal Audit is responsible for providing an annual opinion on the internal control 
environment, risk management and governance processes for the Council as a whole, 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

5

5.1

as set out within the Internal Audit Charter. A risk based approach is taken within 
individual audit reviews, embracing operational and management controls and the 
wider business risks. This allows an opinion to be expressed on risk identification and 
exposure and the adequacy of systems in place to manage those risks. 

In each Internal Audit report Internal Audit provides a clear audit assurance opinion on 
how effectively risks are being managed in the area under review. These opinions are 
as follows:

Assurance 
Opinion

Explanation

Limited A number of key risks are not managed effectively. The control 
systems in operation are in need of significant improvement.

Adequate The control systems in operation are generally sound. However, 
opportunities exist to improve the management of some risks.

Substantial There is a sound system of control in operation to manage risks 
effectively.

In terms of the Internal Audit follow up process to provide Members with the 
assurance that agreed recommendations have been implemented on a timely basis, 
any ‘red’ reports on which we can provide only limited assurance will be highlighted 
within section 6 of this report. These will be subject to specific discussion and 
challenge by Members with senior officers from the relevant Service. Thereafter, 
Internal Audit will perform a formal follow up audit within a six month period or sooner 
if the due date for completing the agreed actions is earlier and report back to the 
Audit and Governance Committee with our findings.

In terms of any ‘adequate’ or ‘substantial’ assurance opinions, all high and medium 
priority actions will be followed up by Internal Audit to confirm completion once the 
due dates have passed. Any delays in implementation will be reported to the 
Committee for further consideration. If some of the recommendations have not yet 
been actioned, Internal Audit will request reasons for the delay and confirmation of a 
revised date by which the action should be completed. The current status of the 
implementation of audit recommendations as confirmed by formal follow up audits is 
highlighted within Appendix B and any key issues will be highlighted to the Members. 
Whilst in some cases implementation has not been achieved by the originally agreed 
dates, Internal Audit has received reasonable explanations to support the delays 
incurred and will continue to monitor progress through to the revised dates proposed 
by management. The only matter to bring to the attention of Members in this regard is 
summarised in paragraph 6.2.

Draft reports are issued to management with the requirement that formal responses 
to recommendations raised are received within one month of the issue date. Internal 
Audit actively follows up with management via an escalation process to ensure that 
the reports and actions are agreed in a timely manner. At present, there are no draft 
reports where responses are still outstanding beyond the agreed period.

Planned Work Completed During Quarter Two 

Appendix A contains the details of planned audit reviews completed during quarter 
two which had an ‘adequate’ or ‘substantial’ assurance opinion. Key areas for 

Page 7



6

6.1

6.2

7

7.1

7.2

8

8.1

8.2

improvement are summarised for each audit with a specific focus on any agreed 
actions designated as high priority.

Audit Reviews with ‘Limited’ assurance opinions and Follow Up Audits

No audit reviews with a limited assurance opinion have been completed during the 
period. 
 
The current status of all follow up audits is summarised in Appendix B. With reference 
to the audit relating to the Former Boots Warehouse Demolition we note that the 
recommendations which were discussed at Audit and Governance Committee on 26 
July 2017 and which were due to be completed by 31 July 2017 have not yet been 
completed. This includes the various retrospective exemption forms which need to be 
completed to comply with Contract Procedure Rules and to support the significant 
overspend that was incurred on the project, as well as updating Members on the 
financial impact of this project on the Regeneration Sites Programme. A member of 
the senior management team has agreed to attend Audit and Governance Committee 
to update Members on the progress of these recommendations.

Unplanned work

Charitable organisations
  (Director  – Neighbourhoods)

At the request of management, Internal Audit performed an evaluation of certain 
processes and controls within two organisations within the charitable sector, both of 
whom are in part supported by grants from RBC and which provide services to the  
community and the Borough as whole. As agreed within the respective terms of 
references, findings, conclusions and recommendations were fed back to the relevant 
management boards of the organisations. 

Internal Investigation
  (Assistant Director – Early Help and Schools)

On behalf of management, Internal Audit provided independent resource to support 
an internal investigation of an officer. This led to a disciplinary hearing and 
subsequent dismissal of the officer.

Counter Fraud Team

A summary of the work completed by the Counter Fraud Team from July 2017 to 
September 2017 is set out below.

Performance

A total of 314 fraud referrals were received in the second quarter of this financial year, 
representing an increase of 84 from the same period in 2016/17.  The main sources of 
these referrals came from the National Fraud Initiative (NFI), the Partnership 
Enforcement Team, anonymous information and RBC employees. A significant 
number of these do not progress to formal investigation by the team as they are either 
passed to the DWP or closed due to apparent malicious intent or the fact that there is 

Page 8



8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

not enough information to progress the matter.

From July to September 2017 the team achieved £52,199 in additional savings and 
overpayments. To date the Team have achieved £168,205 which is ahead of target. 
This figure derives from successful investigations into transactions associated with a 
number of Service areas including Benefits, Council Tax, Business Rates, Blue 
Badge and Adult Care, as well as additional income from fraud financial penalties, 
administrative penalties and court costs. 

85% of referrals have resulted in positive outcomes in quarter two. 

5 sanctions were achieved in quarter two, comprising 1 formal caution and 4 fines for 
fraud.

National Fraud Initiative (NFI)

The Counter Fraud Team is one of several sections within the Council that have an 
important role to play in checking data matches that are received from the NFI.  

The Team have been checking further data received in the 2016/17 NFI Single 
Person Discount, Council Tax matches. This has resulted in further single person 
discounts being cancelled, resulting in bills of over £15,000 being generated in quarter 
two and £33,000 to date.  

The Team have received the NFI Housing Benefit reports. The recommended 
matches have been checked and samples of the key reports have also been checked. 
Three investigations have been opened. Two closed positively and one is under 
investigation. 

In addition, the team are still checking the Council Tax Reduction reports and 
matches. 12 investigations have been opened; 11 fraud cases are under investigation 
and one has been closed positively.

Partnership Enforcement Team (PET)

The Counter Fraud Team not only investigates cases of fraud, but also provides a 
wealth of advice across the Council to services and to external bodies including 
immigration and the police.  Replies have been made to 123 Data Protection 
Requests from July to September 2017, not including the work that is completed in 
the PET. 

Referrals from different teams are brought to the PET weekly meeting each Monday 
to discuss and work on together.  A combination of intelligence, skills and powers 
from the different enforcement agencies are used to prevent and detect fraud within 
the Borough. Currently the following cross-agency teams attend the weekly meeting: 
GMP – Organised Crime Team; Divisional Tasking Team, Rochdale BC – Children’s 
Services; Community Cohesion & Equality; Community Safety; Fraud; Public 
Protection; Strategic Housing, DWP – Fraud, RBH – Enforcement, Fire Service 
officials.

The Counter Fraud Team also dealt with over 134 ‘police checks’ on Rochdale BC 

Page 9



8.13

8.14

9

9.1

9.2

9.3

systems, to help the police trace alleged offenders and absconders.  In addition, a 
total of 11 fraud referrals have been received as a result of the PET. 

The experienced investigators continue to participate in days of action and proactive 
visits resulting in savings being generated in respect of Council Tax, Business Rates, 
Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support.

On 6 October 2017 the Counter Fraud Team participated in a Multi-Agency Day of 
Action. Results from the day are currently being collated. However, we can confirm 6 
fraud investigations are ongoing following information received on the day.

Internal Audit Performance Measures

The table below shows actual performance as at 30 September 2017 against Internal 
Audit targets for the second quarter, including the actuals for 2017/18. 

Performance Indicator Actual 
 Q2 

2016/17

Actual 
 Year 

2016/17

Target 
Q2

2017/18

Actual 
Q2

2017/18
Economy
1. Cost per Audit Day – excluding 
overheads

£257 £242 £259 £207

Efficiency
2. Chargeable days per auditor (days) 185 194 186 186

3. Percentage of audit plan completed 
(95% for full year)

41% 96% 44% 40%

4. Percentage of draft audit reports issued 
within 14 days of completion of the audit

100% 100% 98% 100%

Effectiveness
5. Percentage of recommendations 
accepted

100% 100% 98% 100%

6. Results of client surveys - % of marks in 
the top two categories (i.e. very good & 
good)

100% 100% 98% 100%

  
All performance indicators either achieved or were ahead of target for the year with 
the only exception of the percentage of audit plan completed which is just short of 
target.  

The four month secondment of a Senior Auditor to support the Council’s input into the 
Independent Inquiry into Child Sexual Abuse finished at the end of August 2017 and 
she has now returned to Internal Audit. In addition to this various other unplanned 
work was progressed or completed during the period relating to:

 Support to Human Resources for an investigation relating to a staff grievance;

Page 10



9.4

10

10.1

 Independent reviews of two charitable organisations supported by the Council 
at the request of senior management; and

 An investigation at a school.
Time for the above assignments was drawn from the pool of unplanned time included 
within the Annual Internal Audit Plan. 
Whilst progress in completing the Plan in the first 6 months of the year has inevitably 
fallen slightly behind schedule, a full review of the status of the Plan at this stage 
indicated that the Audit Plan is still on track to be completed by the end of the financial 
year. This is possible partly due to additional resource being identified from within the 
Resources Directorate such that a former Senior Auditor is now working for Internal 
Audit for half his working hours through to the end of March 2018 which will allow 
some of this lost time to be recovered. Furthermore there have been some 
amendments to the Audit Plan as summarised in section 10 below. The Head of 
Internal Audit will continue to monitor this situation and make Members aware of any 
further pressures on resource as the year progresses.
Amendments to the Audit Plan

Following a full review of the Audit Plan, as agreed by the Audit and Governance 
Committee on 13 March 2017, in conjunction with senior management within 
individual directorates, the following audits have now been deferred to 2018/19 or 
deleted for the reasons stated. As such this will have no detrimental impact on the 
ability to deliver an opinion on the overall control environment for 2017/18.

 Shared Services (Children’s Services) – audit deferred to 2018/19 as 
anticipated developments within the service have not progressed in line with 
expectations;

 Multi-agency screening service (Children’s Services) – being re-shaped to form 
the Early Help & Safeguarding Hub which is due to be launched early in 2018. 
Audit deferred to 2018/19 to allow the new arrangements to be fully embedded;

 Link4Life Client Management (Public Health and Wellbeing) – the contract and 
working arrangements are subject to fundamental review and the audit will be 
deferred to a later date when this has been completed to ensure value is added 
at an appropriate time;

 Highways Network Valuation (Neighbourhoods) – audit deleted as no longer 
necessary due to the proposed new accounting policy being abolished by the 
accounting body; and

 Tranman (Neighbourhoods) – senior management has authorised the service 
to pursue a new system to replace Tranman (an IT system which supports the 
fleet management service) so a proposed audit of the IT system has been 
deleted at this stage as it would provide little value in view of this decision.
 

11  Traded Services Provided by Internal Audit

11.1 Internal Audit has completed audit work for a number of organisations in 
accordance with Traded Services agreements, thereby generating external 
income for the Authority. In the year to date this has included: 

 Audits of 4 School Fund Accounts for 4 different schools under Local 
Authority control. 

Page 11



Costs and Budget Summary

12. Not applicable.

Risk and Policy Implications

If Internal Audit recommendations are not implemented, the Council will be 
exposed to the risks set out in the relevant detailed Internal Audit reports. 
These risks will be mitigated by completion of the actions agreed with 
management and summarised within this report. Internal Audit 
recommendations are raised as a result of weaknesses identified during 
reviews and therefore such identified issues impact upon compliance and 
governance.

13.

Consultation

14. The recommendations and actions arising from audit reviews are agreed in 
consultation with relevant senior management and officers within each 
Service area.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None

For Further Information Contact: Ian Corbridge, Tel: 01706925452, 
ian.corbridge@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 12



Appendix A
Planned audits completed in quarter two

Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Adult Controcc – 
Payments to Care 

Providers

Controcc is the IT system used to generate payments to residential care 
providers which, in 2016/17, amounted to £43million. This audit focused on 
evaluating controls over the authorisation, validity, accuracy and recording 
of payments, including reconciliation with interfaced systems.

Internal Audit concluded that control systems in operation are generally 
sound but there is the opportunity to improve the management of certain 
risks. The medium priority actions agreed focused on ensuring:

 Reconciliations are established between Controcc and the core 
financial system to confirm the accuracy of data being processed; 
and

 Care plans within a feeder system are updated by social workers 
more promptly and completely to ensure payments made are 
accurate and to avoid the need for subsequent adjustments due to 
delays in the processing of supporting information.

Adequate M – 2,
L – 3

P
age 13



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Resources Ethical 
Governance

This audit focused on evaluating the arrangements in place for both gifts 
and hospitality and the staff register of personal interests, primarily to 
ensure that polices and processes were appropriate, communicated and 
monitored.

Whilst the Employee Code of Conduct was updated and re-issued in early 
2016 and employees are directed towards reading and following the new 
procedures, we did identify a number of areas that required improvement 
to ensure that all areas of risk are appropriately managed going forward. 
These included:

 Ensuring that the use and functionality of iTrent for registering 
interests is better promoted and enhanced to encourage policy 
compliance;

 Further promoting the gifts and hospitality policy to encourage 
compliance and to develop processes to monitor this within 
Services; and

 Ensuring the database for Politically Restricted Posts is brought up 
to date and monitored on an ongoing basis.

Adequate M – 5 

P
age 14



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Resources Refunds – Sundry 
Debt and Housing 

Benefit 
Overpayments

Further to a previous audit of refunds relating to council tax and business 
rates, this audit focused on other refunds processed by the Corporate Debt 
Team. The audit evaluated processes and controls over the awarding and 
payment of refunds, ensuring they are valid, authorised and correctly 
recorded.

The audit concluded that controls are generally sound but, based on the 
risks attached to this area,  medium priority recommendations were agreed 
to ensure:

 Refunds relating to housing benefit payments are authorised prior 
to processing; 

 Independent checks on bank details are made prior to setting up 
new creditors; and

 Implement periodic independent checks between payment files and 
source files to confirm the integrity of core data.

Adequate M - 3

Neighbourhoods Street Lighting 
PFI

The Core Investment Period to replace 25,000 street lighting assets has 
now finished and the maintenance phase commenced, running through 
until July 2036. The focus of this audit was to establish if sufficient 
arrangements are in place to monitor the maintenance phase of the 
contract in terms of maintenance, repairs, energy consumption, overall 
performance and risk management.

Internal audit can provide positive assurance that all key risks are being 
managed and no recommendations were made. Performance appears to 
be generally on track and regularly reported to Members through Overview 
and Scrutiny. Risks are being actively monitored and managed and energy 
consumption is falling.

Substantial None

P
age 15



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Neighbourhoods Cemeteries and 
Bereavement 

Service

The Council operates 5 cemeteries and 2 crematoria under the 
management of the Environmental Management function. Given that a 
separate health and safety audit was being undertaken by Management 
and Organisational Support, our audit focused on financial controls over 
income, expenditure and records management to avoid any duplication.

The audit provides substantial assurance that controls are effective and no 
recommendations were considered appropriate.

Substantial None

Economy Economic 
Development 
Fund (EDF)

The EDF was established in 2015 to assist those businesses who wish to 
start up, relocate to or expand in the Rochdale borough and are not 
eligible for financial assistance from other bodies. Up to April 2017, 174 
jobs had been created as a result of EDF intervention. This audit sought to 
evaluate the processes supporting the EDF together with compliance, 
monitoring, performance, governance and the risk of fraud.

Internal Audit concluded that there is a sound system of control in 
operation to manage risks effectively. This was backed up by a sample of 
transactions covering grants that have been awarded and refused which 
demonstrated an appropriate level of challenge and segregation of duties 
to assess and subsequently approve applications.

Substantial L – 2 

P
age 16



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Economy Rochdale 
Development 
Agency (RDA)

Since January 2016 RDA has been a Local Authority Controlled Company, 
with the Council as the sole member of the company, the main objective of 
which is to aid the physical and economic regeneration of the Borough. 
There is a Service Agreement between RBC and RDA and RBC provide 
significant core funding to support RDA.

The audit focused on providing assurance over the effectiveness of 
governance, performance monitoring, financial and risk management. The 
audit concluded that controls were effective in all these areas. Medium 
priority recommendations focused on:

 Ensuring governing documents complied with statutory 
requirements associated with such companies;

 Reviewing the potential closure of subsidiary companies that were 
no longer appropriate; and

 Reviewing processes supporting the raising of purchase orders 
between RBC and RDA to ensure segregation of duties remain 
appropriate.

   

Substantial M – 4,
L – 5

Various Grant 
Certifications

Certain grants available to RBC require periodic certification to confirm that 
the grants have been spent in accordance with grant terms and conditions. 
These certifications generally require sign off by the Head of Internal Audit 
together with either the Chief Executive or Chief Finance Officer. During 
quarter two, the following grant certifications were signed off in this way: 
 Local Growth Fund Determination 2016-17; and
 Local Transport Capital Block Funding Grant. 

Internal Audit performed various independent checks to ensure that grant 
certifications could be signed off and no issues arose from this work.

Substantial None

P
age 17



Service Audit Area Scope of Audit and Key Areas for Improvement
Assurance 

Opinion
Recommendation 

priorities
(H, M, L)

Children’s Services 
- Schools

2 Primary 
Schools

These comprised reviews of the schools exposure to risk using the Ofsted 
document “Keeping your balance”, also taking account of other service 
areas and the extent of schools’ implementation of previous 
recommendations. 
Castleton Primary
Little Heaton CE  Primary

No high priority recommendations were made. However a number of 
actions were agreed to improve processes and controls including ensuring 
that:
 All school policies are presented to the full Governing Body for approval 

when they are either first established or reviewed;
 Ongoing contractual arrangements are subject to periodic market 

testing to ensure value for money continues to be obtained from such 
arrangements; and

 Polices relating to the disposal of assets align with all current legislation 
and are fully complied with. 

Substantial – 
2

M – 4,
L – 2 

P
age 18



Appendix B
FOLLOW UP OF OUTSTANDING INTERNAL AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS – STATUS AS AT 7 DECEMBER 2017

Report Assurance Service 
High and 
Medium 

priority actions 

Final Date 
for 

Completion 
Follow up 

date 
Actions 

Complete
Actions 
Still in 

Progress 
Notes on Follow Up Audit

IT Disaster Recovery & 
Business Continuity A Neighbourhoods 2 31/07/2016    Follow up to be completed as 

part of the 2017/18 audit

Connected Council 
Programme A Neighbourhoods 3 31/10/2016    

To be followed up in 2017/18 
as part of a new audit of CCP 

scheduled for Oct 2017.
Better Care Fund A Adult 3 31/10/2016    Follow up in progress
Section 17 Payments S Children's 2 01/05/2017    Follow up in progress
Payroll S Resources 2 30/06/2017    Follow up in progress

Former Boots Warehouse 
Demolition A Neighbourhoods 7 31/07/2017 28/09/2017 2 5

Retrospective exemptions 
have yet to be finalised and 
formally approved to ensure 

compliance with Contract 
Procedure Rules. Update on 

financial impacts for Members 
also yet to be actioned.

(see paragraph 6.2 above)
Highways Contract 
Management A Neighbourhoods 15 31/07/2017    Follow up in progress

Creditors Transaction 
Testing 2016/17 A Corporate 13 31/07/2017    Follow up to be completed as 

part of the 2017/18 audit

Refunds - Council Tax 
and Business Rates A Resources 7 31/08/2017 21/11/2017 6 1

One recommendation yet to 
be actioned pending system 

developments to address data 
protection issues associated 
with proposed new reporting 

processes.

P
age 19



Report Assurance Service 
High and 
Medium 

priority actions 

Final Date 
for 

Completion 
Follow up 

date 
Actions 

Complete
Actions 
Still in 

Progress 
Notes on Follow Up Audit

Refunds - Sundry Debt 
and Housing Benefit 
Overpayment

A Resources 3 31/08/2017    Follow up in progress

Primary School L Children's 21 31/10/2017    To be followed up in 2017/18

Controcc - Payments to 
Care Providers A Adult 2 31/10/2017    To be followed up in 2017/18

Cyber Security A Neighbourhoods 11 31/12/2017    To be followed up in 2017/18
Rochdale Development 
Agency S Economy 4 31/12/2017    To be followed up in 2017/18

Ethical Governance A Resources 5 31/12/2017    To be followed up in 2017/18
Town Hall Cash Handling 
and Bookings A Neighbourhoods 14 01/04/2018    To be followed up in 2017/18

P
age 20



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2016/17

The Annual Audit Letter for 
Rochdale Borough Council
Year ended 31 March 2017

Gareth Mills
Associate Director
T 0113 200 2535
E gareth.mills@uk.gt.com
Daniel Watson
Manager
T 0161 234 6344
E daniel.watson@uk.gt.com
Amelia Payton
Executive
T 0161 953 6943
E amelia.l.payton@uk.gt.com

27 October 2017

Jackie Bellard
Director
T 0161 234 6394
E jackie.bellard@uk.gt.com

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 7



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2016/17 2

Contents
Section Page
1. Executive summary 3
2. Audit of the accounts 5
3. Value for Money conclusion 8
Appendix
A Reports issued and fees 10

P
age 22



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2016/17 3

Executive summary
Purpose of this letter
Our Annual Audit Letter (Letter) summarises the key findings arising from the 
work we have carried out at Rochdale Borough Council (the Council) the year 
ended 31 March 2017.
This Letter provides a commentary on the results of our work to the Council and 
its external stakeholders, and highlights issues we wish to draw to the attention of 
the public.  In preparing this letter, we have followed the National Audit Office 
(NAO)'s Code of Audit Practice (the Code) and  Auditor Guidance Note (AGN) 
07 – 'Auditor Reporting'.
We reported the detailed findings from our audit work to the Council's Audit and 
Governance Committee (as those charged with governance) in our Audit Findings 
Report on 26 July 2017.
Our responsibilities
We have carried out our audit in accordance with the NAO's Code of Audit 
Practice, which reflects the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability 
Act 2014 (the Act). Our key responsibilities are to:
• give an opinion on the Council’s financial statements (section two)
• assess the Council's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 

effectiveness in its use of resources (the value for money conclusion) (section 
three).

In our audit of the Council’s financial statements, we comply with International 
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (ISAs) and other guidance issued by the 
NAO.

Our work
Financial statements opinion
We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's financial statements on 26 July 2017.  
This represents a strong achievement by the Council as it is already achieving the new 
audited accounts deadline of 31 July a year in advance of its statutory introduction from 
2018.
Value for money conclusion
We were satisfied that the Council put in place proper arrangements to ensure economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources during the year ended 31 March 2017. 
We reflected this in our audit opinion on 26 July 2017.
Use of additional powers and duties 
We are required under the Act to give electors the opportunity to raise questions about 
the Council's accounts and we consider and decide upon objections received in relation to 
the accounts. 
On 10 July 2017 we received an objection to the Council’s 2016-17 financial
statements from a Rochdale elector. The objection is in relation to the Council’s
portfolio of “Lender Option Borrower Option” (LOBO) loans. A number of councils 
across the country have received similar objections in relation to LOBO borrowing in 
both 2016-17 and in 2015-16. As at 31 March 2017, the principal outstanding on the 
Council’s LOBO borrowing was £99m across a total of eight LOBO loans.
Our work on the objection is ongoing and we will not be able to issue our audit certificate 
(which formally concludes our audit) until such time as we have finalised our work on the 
objection, expected to be later in 2017-18.
We will communicate with the objector and with the Council at key stages, including to 
allow opportunity for comment on documents that we consider material in reaching our 
decision in determining the objection.

P
age 23



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2016/17 4

Whole of government accounts
We completed work on the Council's consolidation return following guidance 
issued by the NAO and issued an unqualified report on 27 September 2017. 
Certificate
We are currently unable to certify that we have completed the audit of the 
accounts of the Council as we have not yet completed work in respect of the 
objection received.
Certification of grants
We also carry out work to certify the Council's Housing Benefit subsidy claim on 
behalf of the Department for Work and Pensions. Our work on this claim is 
currently ongoing and will be finalised by 30 November 2017. We will report the 
results of this work to the Audit and Governance Committee early in 2018 in our 
Annual Certification Letter. 
Working with the Council
As in previous years we have worked with Council staff to bring forward the 
timetable of the accounts and audit process, to prepare to meet the new statutory 
deadline of 31 July in advance of the 2017-18 implementation. 
We received draft financial statements and accompanying working papers on 31
May 2017. This represents good performance given that the Council continues to
produce its draft accounts well in advance of the current statutory deadline of 30
June (and indeed already achieves the new local government statutory deadline for
draft accounts of 31 May, due to be introduced in 2018). The accounts were
accompanied by good quality working papers and our audit fieldwork commenced
as planned on 12 June 2017.
Regular liaison meetings were held between the audit team and key finance officers
prior to preparation of the draft accounts, and during the fieldwork, which enabled
early resolution of emerging issues.

The finance team worked proactively during the audit to answer queries promptly 
and the draft accounts only required a small number of presentational changes, 
enabling a smooth and efficient year-end fieldwork visit. 
We would like to record our appreciation for the assistance and co-operation
provided to us during our audit by the Council's staff.

Grant Thornton UK LLP
19 October 2017

P
age 24



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2016/17 5

Audit of  the accounts
Our audit approach
Materiality
In our audit of the Council’s accounts, we applied the concept of materiality to 
determine the nature, timing and extent of our work, and to evaluate the results of 
our work. We define materiality as the size of the misstatement in the financial 
statements that would lead a reasonably knowledgeable person to change or 
influence their economic decisions. 
We determined materiality for our audit of the Council's accounts to be £11.1 
million, which is 2% of the Council's gross revenue expenditure. We used this 
benchmark, as in our view, users of the Council's accounts are most interested in 
how it has spent the income it has raised from taxation and grants during the year. 
We also set a lower level of specific materiality for related party transactions and 
senior officer remuneration of £20,000 due to the sensitive nature of these 
disclosures. 
We set a lower threshold of £553,000, above which we reported errors to the 
Audit and Governance Committee in our Audit Findings ISA260 Report.

The scope of our audit
Our audit involved obtaining enough evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements to give reasonable assurance they are free from material 
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes assessing whether: 
• the Council's accounting policies are appropriate, have been consistently applied 

and adequately disclosed
• significant accounting estimates made by the Chief Finance Officer are 

reasonable
• the overall presentation of the financial statements gives a true and fair view.

We also read the narrative report and annual governance statement to check they 
were consistent with our understanding of the Council and with the accounts on 
which we gave our opinion.
We carry out our audit in line with ISAs (UK and Ireland) and the NAO Code of 
Audit Practice. We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Our audit approach was based on a thorough understanding of the Council's 
business and is risk based. 
We identified key risks and set out overleaf the work we performed in response to 
these risks and the results of this work.

P
age 25



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2016/17 6

Audit of  the accounts
Risks identified in our Audit Plan How we responded to the risk Findings and conclusions
Valuation of pension fund net 
liability
The Council's pension fund net liability, 
as reflected in its balance sheet, 
represents a significant estimate in the 
financial statements.

As part of our audit work we:
 Identified the controls put in place by management to ensure that the pension fund net 

liability was not materially misstated and assessed whether those controls were 
implemented as expected and whether they were sufficient to mitigate the risk of material 
misstatement

 Reviewed the competence, expertise and objectivity of the actuary who carried out the 
Council's pension fund valuation

 Gained an understanding of the basis on which the IAS 19 valuation was carried out, 
undertaking procedures to confirm the reasonableness of the actuarial assumptions made

 Reviewed the consistency of the pension fund net liability disclosures in notes to the 
financial statements with the actuarial report from the Council’s actuary.

Our work did not identify any issues we 
wished to bring to the Council’s attention.

Valuation of property plant and 
equipment
The Council revalues its assets on a 
rolling basis over a four year period. 
The Code requires that the Council 
ensures that the carrying value at the 
balance sheet date is not materially 
different from the current value.
This represents a significant estimate 
by management in the financial 
statements.

As part of our audit work we have: 
 Reviewed management's processes and assumptions for the calculation of the estimate
 Reviewed the competence, expertise and objectivity of any management experts used
 Reviewed the instructions issued to valuation experts and the scope of their work
 Held discussions with the Council's valuer about the basis on which the valuation was 

carried out, challenging the key assumptions
 Reviewed and challenged the information used by the valuer to ensure it was robust and 

consistent with our understanding
 Tested revaluations made during the year to ensure they were input correctly into the 

Council's asset register
 Evaluated the assumptions made by management for those assets not revalued during the 

year to assess how management satisfied themselves that these  were not materially 
different to current value.

Our work did not identify any issues we 
wished to bring to the Council’s attention.

These are the risks which had the greatest impact on our overall strategy and where we focused more of our work. 

P
age 26



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2016/17 7

Audit of  the accounts
Audit opinion
We gave an unqualified opinion on the Council's accounts on 26 July 2017, 
significantly in advance of the 30 September 2017 national deadline.
The Council made the accounts available for audit in line with the agreed 
timetable, and provided a good set of supporting working papers. The finance 
team responded promptly and efficiently to our queries during the audit.
Issues arising from the audit of the accounts
We reported the key issues from our audit of the accounts to the Council’s Audit 
and Governance Committee on 26 July 2017. 
In addition to the key audit risks reported earlier, we identified a small number of 
disclosure amendments during our audit which management agreed to amend in 
the final version of the accounts. 
Annual Governance Statement and Narrative Report
We are required to review the Council's Annual Governance Statement and 
Narrative Report. It published them on its website together with the draft 
accounts in line with the national deadlines. 
Both documents were prepared in line with the relevant guidance and were 
consistent with the supporting evidence provided by the Council and with our 
knowledge of the Council. 

Whole of Government Accounts (WGA) 
We carried out work on the Council's consolidation schedule in line with 
instructions provided by the NAO. We issued a group assurance certificate 
which did not identify any issues for the group auditor to consider on 27 
September 2017. 
Other statutory duties 
We also have additional powers and duties under the Act, including powers to 
issue a public interest report, make written recommendations, apply to the 
Court for a declaration that an item of account is contrary to law, and to give 
electors the opportunity to raise questions about the Council's accounts and to 
raise objections received in relation to the accounts.
As set out on page three, we received an objection from a local elector relating 
to the Council’s use of LOBO borrowing which requests that we issue a public 
interest report and consider an application to the courts for a declaration that 
the LOBO borrowing is unlawful.
We completed an initial review of the objection and were satisfied that the 
Council’s financial statements were not materially misstated due to this issue.
Our work on the objection is ongoing and we will update the objector and the 
Council at key stages of the process during 2017-18.

P
age 27



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2016/17 8

Value for Money conclusion
Background
We carried out our review in accordance with the NAO Code of Audit Practice 
(the Code), following the guidance issued by the NAO in November 2016 which 
specified the criterion for auditors to evaluate:
In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys resources 
to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. 
Key findings
Our first step in carrying out our work was to perform a risk assessment and 
identify the key risks where we concentrated our work.
The key risks we identified and the work we performed are set out in table 
overleaf.
Overall VfM conclusion
We are satisfied that in all significant respects the Council put in place proper 
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources for the year ending 31 March 2017. 

P
age 28



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2016/17 9

Value for Money 
Value for Money risk identified Work carried out Findings and conclusions
Health & Social Care Integration
The Council aims to deliver wide ranging 
changes and greater integration to ensure 
the financial sustainability of adult health 
and social care services.  
Working with partners from different 
organisations and service areas with 
potentially conflicting priorities, the project 
is complex and high profile. 
The Council is working closely with the 
CCG to deliver integrated health and
social care to the borough.

We reviewed the arrangements put in place by
the Council and the CCG to monitor the delivery
of integrated health and social care within the
Borough.

We have noted the work that has been ongoing between the Council and the 
CCG, continuing the use of the Better Care Fund and its governance 
arrangements. Both the Council and CCG are committed to ensuring integration 
of social care is a success delivering efficiencies and a better outcome for 
service users.
Further integration is planned over the coming year with the Council and CCG
submitting a joint transformation bid to GM Health and Social Care Partnership
covering service re-design and a formal pooling of Health and Social Care 
funds. New methods of joint working are being established which will ensure the 
Council and CCG are taking a joint, strategic overview of Health and Social 
Care within the borough, working closely with local provider organisations.
On that basis we concluded that the risk was sufficiently mitigated and the 
Council has proper arrangements in place.

Future Budget Pressures
The Council's future budgets remain
challenging, with further anticipated 
funding reductions coupled with increasing 
demand and costs.
The Council estimated that in the period to
2018-19 it will need to address a gross
budget gap of £26.9m. Of this amount, the
Council has identified savings proposals of
£17m, leaving a revised budget gap of 
£9.85m that was reported to Council in 
March 2017.
As work has progressed during 2017-18 to
solidify assumptions, the current budget 
gap for 2018-19 is £15.9m.

We reviewed the Council's budgetary
performance and considered the processes
established by the Council to identify, manage
and monitor the savings proposals to address
the budget gap.

The Council has a strong track record of delivering its financial commitments 
each year. The financial statements and outturn reports confirm the Council has 
achieved financial targets for the 2016-17 financial year.
The Council set a balanced budget for 2017-18 which includes a savings target 
of £17m to be delivered, £15.2m in 2017-18 and £1.8m in 2018-19. 
Since issuing our opinion the savings programme has been developed with 
engagement of the wider leadership and Council Members. In September 
2017, Cabinet approved savings proposals of £12.4m, including forecast 
benefits to be realised from the integration of Health and Social Care.
General reserve levels are set at a similar level to previous years and the 
Council has earmarked reserves to draw on should the need arise. Overall the 
Council is sufficiently managing its financial challenges at present.
On that basis we concluded that the risk was sufficiently mitigated and the 
Council has proper arrangements in place.

P
age 29



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2016/17 10

Appendix A: Reports issued and fees
Fees

Proposed fee
£

Actual fees 
£

2015-16 fees 
£

Statutory audit of Council 136,373 136,373 136,373
Housing Benefit Grant Certification 18,600 18,600 24,065
Total fees (excluding VAT) 154,973 154,973 160,438

We confirm below our final fees charged for the audit and provision of non-audit services.

Fees for other services
Service Fees £
Audit related services:
• Certification of Teachers’ Pension Return 4,200
Non-audit services
• CFO Insights and Place Analytics 22,500

The proposed fees for the year were in line with the scale fee set by Public Sector 
Audit Appointments Ltd (PSAA)

Reports issued
Report Date issued
Audit Fee Letter April 2016
Audit Plan April 2017
Audit Findings (ISA260) Report July 2017
Annual Audit Letter October 2017

Non- audit services• For the purposes of our audit we have made enquiries of all Grant 
Thornton UK LLP teams providing services to the Council. The table 
above summarises all other services which were identified.

• We have considered whether other services might be perceived as a 
threat to our independence as the Council’s auditor and have ensured 
that appropriate safeguards are put in place. We reported this to the 
Council and those charged with governance in our Audit Findings 
ISA260 Report in July 2017. 

• The above non-audit services are consistent with the Council’s policy on 
the allotment of non-audit work to your auditor and have been 
considered by the Audit and Governance Committee.

P
age 30



© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP  |  The Annual Audit Letter for Rochdale Borough Council  |  2016/17

© 2017 Grant Thornton UK LLP. All rights served. 
'Grant Thornton' refers to the brand under which the Grant Thornton member firms provide assurance, tax and advisory services to their clients and/or refers to one or more member firms, as the context requires. 
Grant Thornton UK LLP is a member firm of Grant Thornton International LTD (GTIL). GTIL and the member firms are not a worldwide partnership. GTIL and each member firm is a separate legal entity. Services are delivered by the member firms. GTIL does not provide services to clients. GTIL, and its member firms are not agents of, and do not obligate, one another and are not liable for one another's acts or omissions. 
grant-thornton.co.uk

P
age 31



Page 32

Agenda Item 8



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 18th December 2017
Portfolio Councillor Allen Brett 

Cabinet Member for 
Corporate and Resources

Report Author Ian Corbridge
Public/Private Document Public

Peer Review of Internal Audit

Executive Summary

1. In order to comply with the requirements of the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards (PSIAS) for an external assessment of Internal Audit to be carried 
out every five years, an independent Peer Review was conducted by senior 
Internal Audit representatives from other North West authorities. The review 
confirmed that RBC Internal Audit conforms with the PSIAS and a small 
number of actions were agreed to further develop this conformance in the 
future. 

Recommendation

2. Consider the contents of the attached Peer Review report which confirms that 
RBC Internal Audit conforms with the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards.

Reason for Recommendation

3.1

3.2

One of the key requirements of the Quality Assurance Improvement 
Programme (which was approved by the Audit and Governance Committee on 
7 December 2015) set out within the PSIAS is for an external assessment to 
be carried out on Internal Audit every five years. The aim is to confirm 
conformance with the PSIAS. On 26 September 2016, Members approved this 
requirement to be completed by way of a Peer Review process to be 
undertaken by senior members of Internal Audit from other authorities within 
the North West Chief Audit Executive Group.

This aligns with the Audit and Governance Committee’s work programme and 
overall responsibility for governance, which includes monitoring the work and 
effectiveness of Internal Audit on an ongoing basis and gaining assurance that 
best practice is being adopted.

Key Points for Consideration

Page 36

Agenda Item 9



4.1

4.2

4.3

The approach taken, findings and agreed actions from the Peer Review are 
set out within the attached report. The report concludes that RBC Internal 
Audit conforms with the PSIAS. The main conclusion also confirmed the 
following:
“From the evidence reviewed and the interviews with key stakeholders it is 
apparent that the Internal Audit service at RBC is highly regarded and 
respected. Senior management clearly value Internal Audit which is seen as a 
helpful resource and makes an effective contribution to the maintenance and 
development of the Council’s risk management, control and governance 
processes. It is also evident that there is an effective relationship between the 
Internal Audit service and the Audit and Governance Committee”.

A small number of actions were agreed to further develop conformance with 
the PSIAS including the following:

 The next update of the Internal Audit Charter will include the 
requirement that all suspected or detected fraud, corruption or 
impropriety should be notified to Internal Audit;

 Quarterly and Annual Internal Audit reports to the Committee will 
include further detail on any changes to the agreed Internal Audit Plan 
and an overall summary of outcomes from the work completed to 
further support the annual audit opinion;

 Additional detail will be included within the Annual Internal Audit report 
to ensure full compliance with all requirements of the PSIAS and 
therefore further support the annual audit opinion; and

 Consideration will be given to formalising the arrangements for 
obtaining independent assurance over those operational areas 
managed by the Head of Internal Audit, specifically in relation to risk 
management, insurance and counter fraud. One option put forward was 
to agree with the Audit and Governance Committee the method by 
which assurance will be obtained and how often that assurance is 
required. As such it is proposed to discuss this with Members at the 
meeting on 18 December 2017 and this will also be fed into the annual 
Internal Audit planning process which involves consultation with senior 
management and Members. Options include a review by Internal Audit 
(but with no involvement of the Head of Internal Audit – as set out 
within the Internal Audit Charter) or a peer review process involving 
other authorities within the north west region. 

Alternatives Considered

An external assessment is a mandatory requirement of the PSIAS. The 
approach taken was approved by Audit and Governance Committee after 
much consideration of the impact and practicalities of the proposed approach. 
As such, no further alternatives are considered appropriate.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. There are no cost or budget implications.

Page 37



Risk and Policy Implications

The main risk is that Internal Audit does not conform to the requirements of 
the PSIAS and this provides a means of independent assurance that such 
standards are being followed. If Internal Audit does not conform to PSIAS 
then this may compromise the ability of the Head of Internal Audit to provide 
an opinion on the Council’s control environment, risk management and 
overall governance.

6.

Consultation

7. The Peer Review team consulted with various members of the senior 
management team, including the Chair of the Audit and Governance 
Committee, as part of the review process, the outcomes of which were fed 
into the attached report.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. None

For Further Information Contact: Ian Corbridge, Tel: 01706925452, 
ian.corbridge@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 38



 

 
 

 
 
 
 

ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

PEER REVIEW OF INTERNAL AUDIT AGAINST THE 
UK PUBLIC SECTOR INTERNAL AUDIT STANDARDS 

 
 

CARRIED OUT BY 
 

Merv Murphy 
Christine Weston 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

ASSESSMENT DATES: 10-12 October 2017 
DRAFT REPORT DATE: 21 November 2017 
FINAL REPORT DATE: 4 December 2017 

Page 39



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

1. Introduction 

2. Approach / Methodology 

3. Conclusion: Overall Assessment 

4. Observations / Recommendations 

 

Appendix 1 Review Team Experience / Qualifications 

Appendix 2 Detailed Assessment Table 

Appendix 3 Action Table 

Appendix 4 Additional Points for Consideration 

  

Page 40



 

Rochdale Borough Council 
 

Peer Review of Internal Audit against the Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards  

 
1 Introduction 
 
1.1 All principal local authorities and other relevant bodies subject to the Accounts 

and Audit (England) Regulations 2015 (amended) must make provision for 

internal audit in accordance with the mandatory Public Sector Internal Audit 

Standards (PSIAS) as well as the CIPFA Local Government Application Note. 

1.2 A professional, independent and objective internal audit service is one of the 

key elements of good governance in local government. 

1.3 The PSIAS require that an external assessment of an organisation’s internal 

audit function is carried out once every five years by a qualified, independent 

assessor or assessment team from outside of the organisation.  External 

assessments can be in the form of a full external assessment, or a self-

assessment with independent external validation. 

1.4 The North West Chief Audit Executives’ Group (NWCAE) has established a 

‘peer-review’ process that is managed and operated by the constituent 

authorities.  This process addresses the requirement of external assessment 

through ‘self-assessment with independent external validation’ and this report 

presents the summary findings of the review carried out on behalf of Rochdale 

Borough Council. 

1.5 An independent assessor or review team is defined as not having either a real 

or an apparent conflict of interest and not being a part of, or under the control 

of, the organisation to which the internal audit activity belongs.  

1.6 This review has been carried out by the Head of Internal Audit from Halton 

Borough Council and a Principal Auditor from Tameside Metropolitan Borough 

Council.  Details of the reviewers’ relevant experience and qualifications are 

included at Appendix 1. 

 

Page 41



 

2 Approach/Methodology   

2.1 The NWCAE Group has agreed a detailed Memorandum of Understanding 

(MoU) that outlines the broad methodology for the conduct of this review. A 

copy of the MoU is available upon request. However, in summary, the key 

elements of the process are: 

 The peer review is undertaken in three stages: pre-review; on-site review; 

post-review, and principally covers audit activity undertaken during the 

period covered by the latest Annual Report & Opinion issued by the Head 

of Internal Audit, i.e. the 2016/17 financial year. 

 Each Authority is required to complete the PSIAS self-evaluation contained 

within the CIPFA Local Government Application Note (LGAN). The LGAN 

outlines the “sector-specific requirements for local government 

organisations” (para 1.13) and “has been developed to satisfy the 

requirements set out in PSIAS 1311 and 1312 for periodic self-

assessments and externally validated self-assessments” (page 23). 

 The NWCAE Group has agreed that the validation will be based on the 

completed LGAN self-assessment. Typically, supporting evidence will 

include the Internal Audit Plan & Charter; the Head of Internal Audit Annual 

Report & Opinion; the Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme; and 

examples of final audit reports and audit working papers. 

 To support the on-site review, key stakeholder questionnaires and 

interviews are also undertaken. 

 The review comprises a combination of ‘desktop’ and “on-site’ review.  

2.2 It should be noted that the review cannot reasonably consider all elements of 

the LGAN self-assessment.  The review team therefore used the ‘desktop’ 

review to determine strengths, weaknesses and subsequent key lines of 

enquiry in order that the review itself is risk-based, timely and adds real value. 

The review covers three broad themes: Purpose and Positioning; Structure 

and Resources; and Audit Execution.  

Page 42



 

2.3 Upon conclusion of the review, an overall assessment judgement is provided 

against each thematic area of the LGAN as follows: Conforms, Partially 

Conforms or Does Not Conform.   These judgements are then used to 

inform an overall assessment on conformance against the Standards.  

3 Conclusion 

3.1 Following a detailed moderation process, the review team has concluded the 

following overall assessment: 

Area of Focus Assessment 

Purpose & Positioning Conforms 

Structure & Resources Conforms 

Audit Execution Conforms 

Overall Assessment Conforms 

 

3.2 From the evidence reviewed and the interviews with key stakeholders it is 

apparent that the internal audit service at Rochdale Borough Council is highly 

regarded and respected.  Senior management clearly value internal audit, 

which is seen as a helpful resource and makes an effective contribution to the 

maintenance and development of the Council’s risk management, control and 

governance processes.  It is also evident that there is an effective relationship 

between the internal audit service and the Audit & Governance Committee.     

3.3 Assessment against the individual elements of each area of focus is included 

in the Detailed Assessment table at Appendix 2 and a summary of the areas 

for consideration to further develop conformance with the Standards is 

identified within the Action Table at Appendix 3.  

3.4 Additional points for consideration identified during the review that are out of 

the scope of the Standards / LGAN requirements, but are contributory to the 

overall effectiveness and efficiency of the internal audit service, are presented 

in the table at Appendix 4 of the report for information and consideration only.   

Page 43



 

3.5 As part of the self-assessment against the PSIAS, Internal Audit had already 

identified a small number of specific areas where work was planned or 

ongoing to further demonstrate conformance with the Standards.  The review 

team was satisfied with the actions being implemented and does not consider 

that any of these issues are significant in terms of overall conformance with 

the Standards.   

4 Observations and Recommendations 

4.1 Attribute Standards   

4.1.1 1000 Purpose, Authority and Responsibility 

 There is a requirement in the LGAN for the Internal Audit Charter to set out the 

existing arrangements within the organisation’s anti-fraud and anti-corruption 

policies, for Internal Audit to be notified of all suspected or detected fraud, 

corruption or impropriety.  Whilst the Internal Audit Charter makes reference to 

fraud related work at sections 4.5 and 4.6 there is no specific reference to the 

arrangements for the notification of fraud, corruption or impropriety.  This is 

not considered a significant issue and it is acknowledged that these reporting 

arrangements are covered elsewhere, i.e. in the Whistleblowing Policy. 

 The Council may however wish to update the Internal Audit Charter to address 

this issue in order to demonstrate fuller conformance with the Standards. 

 Recommendation 1 

4.1.2 1100 / 1110 Organisational Independence 

The Head of Internal Audit also has managerial responsibility for the Council’s 

risk management and insurance arrangements.  The Standards require that 

any assurance engagements in areas over which the Head of Internal Audit 

also has operational responsibility are overseen by someone outside of the 

internal audit activity. 

This issue is partly addressed by arrangements described at paragraph 2.10 

of the Internal Audit Charter.  However, there is an opportunity to further 

strengthen this arrangement by providing greater clarity over how assurance 

over these operational responsibilities will be obtained.  Specifically, it is 

Page 44



 

recommended that the frequency and method of obtaining independent 

assurance over the operation of the risk management and insurance functions 

should be formally agreed with the Audit & Governance Committee. 

Recommendation 2 

4.2 Performance Standards 

4.2.1 2060 Reporting to Senior Management and the Board 

It is a requirement of the Standards that the Head of Internal Audit reports 

periodically to senior management and the board on the internal audit 

activity’s purpose, authority, responsibility and performance relative to its plan. 

At Rochdale this is requirement is met by the Audit & Governance Committee 

formally approving the Internal Audit Charter, the Audit Plan, and receiving 

quarterly progress reports. 

The quarterly reports focus on the work completed in the previous quarter and 

provide information on the percentage of the plan completed.  However, it was 

noted that the reports do not provide a direct comparison of work completed 

against the approved Audit Plan.  As such, the Audit & Governance 

Committee may not be aware of any slippage against the Audit Plan.   

There is consequently an opportunity to further develop the quarterly progress 

reports by reporting more explicitly on what audits from the Audit Plan have 

been completed and what audits remain outstanding.  This will also help to 

identify the potential impact of any slippage on the Annual Audit Opinion.    

Recommendation 3 

 

4.2.2 2450 Overall Opinion   

The LGAN clearly defines the requirements of the Annual Report and Annual 

Audit opinion.  It was confirmed that the Annual Report is substantially 

compliant with these requirements.  The review team also noted that there is 

also clear linkage between the Annual Report and the Annual Governance 

Statement (AGS), with the Head of Internal Audit’s Annual Opinion being 

specifically included in the AGS. 

Page 45



 

There are however some areas where the Internal Audit Annual Report could 

be developed further to demonstrate fuller conformance with the requirements 

of the Standards: 

 The Standards include a requirement to identify any scope limitations in 

providing an overall opinion.  It is therefore recommended that an 

explicit statement is included to inform the reader if there have been 

any limitations placed on the scope of internal audit work. 

 The Standards include a requirement for any reliance on other 

assurance providers to be specifically stated in the Annual Opinion 

report.  It is noted that section 18 of the 2016/17 Annual Report 

provides a description of other external and internal sources of 

assurance.  However, the requirements of the Standards would be 

better met by specific reference to any other sources of assurance that 

have been relied upon in providing the Annual Opinion. 

 There is a requirement in the LGAN that the Annual Report includes a 

comparison of work actually carried out with the work planned.  It is 

noted that the Annual Report provides significant analysis of internal 

audit’s coverage during the year, but this is not compared in the same 

format to the original plan as far as the number of days for each service 

is concerned.  The Annual Report would be strengthened by the 

inclusion of details by service area of the approved plan, the work 

carried out, any revisions to the plan, and any planned work not 

delivered and explaining the impact of this on the overall opinion.  The 

approved annual plan has been compiled using a risk based process, 

so changes or non-completion could potentially impact on the overall 

opinion. 

 In terms of completeness and transparency it would be helpful if the 

Annual Report also provided details of the planned audits that remain in 

progress and those audits not started but carried forward into the 

following year’s plan. 

Page 46



 

 There is also an LGAN requirement that the Annual Report provides 

details of any issues that the Head of Internal Audit judges relevant to 

the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement.  Whilst the 

Annual Report highlights the audit reviews with limited assurance 

opinions, there is presently no specific statement that highlights 

whether there are any issues identified from the work of internal audit 

that are considered relevant in terms of the preparation of the AGS.  

Recommendation 4 

4.2.3 2330 Documenting Information 

The Standards include a requirement that internal auditors document the 

relevant information required to support engagement conclusions and results.  

This includes an LGAN requirement that working papers are sufficiently 

complete and detailed to enable another experienced internal auditor with no 

previous connection with the audit to ascertain what work was performed, to 

re-perform it if necessary and to support the conclusions reached. 

As part of the review a sample of audit files and working papers were 

examined.  Whilst the working papers were sufficiently detailed to explain 

what work had been performed and to support the conclusions reached, there 

were some areas identified where the standard or completeness of the 

documentation could be improved: 

 Managerial review of the whole file wasn’t always evident; 

 The audit process document in the QAIP refers to an Assignment Plan, 

a Start Memo and an Audit Scope Document.  From the sample of 

audits reviewed there were some inconsistencies noted in terms of the 

documentation held on file.  It is however acknowledged that this issue 

has been recognised by management and action has been taken to 

reviewing the audit process document to reflect revised working 

practices and the use of an updated Terms of Reference; 

 There were some inconsistencies in terms of the audit approach and 

the format of documentation held on files; 

Page 47



 

 There were examples of information being duplicated in different 

documents held on the file.  

In the opinion of the review team the internal audit service would benefit from 

investment in an audit management information system to provide a more 

consistent and efficient audit methodology, better evidencing of management 

review and more robust file archiving arrangements.  Such a system would 

also facilitate agile working by allowing auditors access to the whole range of 

audit files and associated documentation from remote locations. 

Recommendation 5 

4.2.4 Contribution to the effectiveness and efficiency of the governance, risk 

management and internal control processes 

The review process confirmed that the internal audit service makes a 

significant contribution to the development of the effectiveness and efficiency 

of the Council’s governance, risk management and internal control processes.  

This was evidenced by interviews and surveys with key stakeholders and 

detailed review of key documentation, such as audit reports, client feedback 

surveys, Audit Plans, Annual Reports and Progress Reports to the Audit & 

Governance Committee. 

It was also evident that the internal audit service has been proactive in terms 

of attempting to share the wider learning from audit work across the Council.  

An example of this is the fact that the internal audit service has started to 

report to the Leadership Team on a quarterly basis to provide an update on 

audit work and findings. 

In the course of the review, one of the internal audit service’s key customers 

stated that there may be an opportunity to further develop the sharing of 

lessons learnt from audit work.  In particular they said that they would 

welcome the opportunity to know more about work planned and delivered in 

other parts of the Council.  It was also mentioned that better use could be 

made of the Internal Audit pages on the intranet by ensuring that relevant 

information and documents are published and kept up to date. 

Page 48



 

Whilst not an issue in terms of conformance with the Standards, the internal 

audit service may wish to consider what further could be done to heighten its 

profile and raise awareness of any significant issues arising from the work 

carried out. 

Recommendation 6   

 

  

Page 49



Appendix 1 

 

THE PEER REVIEW TEAM: 

Merv Murphy CPFA 

Merv has been a member of the Chartered Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy 

(CIPFA) since 1992 and is currently the Divisional Manager – Audit, Procurement & 

Operational Finance at Halton Borough Council.  This role involves being the 

Council’s Head of Internal Audit in addition to having management responsibility for 

a wide range of other finance functions. 

Merv has worked in the audit profession for approximately 30 years and has both 

public and private sector audit management experience from previous roles at Bury 

Council and KPMG.  In his current role Merv is also a member of the Audit 

Committee for the Mersey Gateway Crossings Board and has previous Audit 

Committee experience in the Further Education sector. 

Christine Weston FCCA 

Christine is a fellow of the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants, and has 

been a member of the Association since 1990.  She has also successfully achieved 

the Institute of Internal Auditors qualification (MIIA).  Her current post is Principal 

Auditor at Tameside Council, with audit responsibility for the Greater Manchester 

Pension Fund (GMPF), Governance, ICT and Childrens Services (including schools). 

Christine has worked in the accountancy and audit profession for over 30 years, and 

has private sector accountancy, internal audit and external audit experience.  In her 

current role Christine reports to the Local Board of GMPF, which acts as the Audit 

Committee to the Pension Fund, and has previous Audit Committee experience with 

NHS clients. 

 

Page 50



Appendix 2 

Rochdale Borough Council - Detailed Assessment 

Ref Standard Conforms Partially  

Conforms 

Does not  

Conform 

Comments 

 Code of Ethics     

1000 Remit    See Rec 1 

1000 Reporting lines     

1110 Independence    See Rec 2 

1230 Continuing Professional Development     

2010 Risk based plan     

2050 Other assurance providers     

2060 Reporting to Senior Management and the Board    See Rec 3 

2120 Risk Management     

 Structure & resources     

1200 Competencies      

1210 Technical training & development     

1220 Resourcing     

1230 Performance management     

1230 Knowledge management     

 Audit execution     

1300 Quality Assurance & Improvement Programme     

2000 Management of the IA function     

2200 Engagement planning     

2300 Engagement delivery    See Rec 5 

2400 Reporting    See Rec 6 

2450 Overall opinion    See Rec 4 

 

Overall Conclusion 

Conforms  

Partially Conforms  

Does Not Conform  

P
age 51



Appendix 3 

Rochdale Borough Council – PSIAS Action Table                                                                                                          

The following issues for consideration are highlighted in order to assist the internal audit service in achieving fuller conformance with the 

Standards: 

 
PSIAS Ref 
(Appendix 

2) 
 

 
Report 

Rec 

 
Point For Consideration 

 
Responsible 

 
Action 

1000 1 

 

 

In order to demonstrate fuller conformance with the Standards 
consideration should be given to updating the Internal Audit 
Charter to include the LGAN requirement to set out the 
existing arrangements within the organisation’s anti-fraud and 
anti-corruption policies, for Internal Audit to be notified of all 
suspected or detected fraud, corruption or impropriety.   

Ian Corbridge This will be included 
within the next update of 
the Internal Audit Charter 
in 2018. 

Due date: 30 September 
2018 

1110 

 

2 

 

 

Consideration should be given to formalising the 
arrangements for obtaining independent assurance over those 
operational areas managed by the Head of Internal Audit.  
One option would be to agree with the Audit & Governance 
Committee the method by which assurance will be obtained 
and how often that assurance is required. 

Ian Corbridge This will be discussed 
and agreed with the Audit 
& Governance Committee 
on 18 December 2017. 

Due date: 18 December 
2017 

P
age 52



Appendix 3 

 
PSIAS Ref 
(Appendix 

2) 
 

 
Report 

Rec 

 
Point For Consideration 

 
Responsible 

 
Action 

2060 3 Consideration should be given to further developing the 
quarterly progress reports to provide a more detailed 
comparison of work completed against planned work.  This 
will assist the Audit & Governance Committee in identifying 
any slippage against the Audit Plan work and allow 
consideration of any potential impact on the Annual Opinion.   

Ian Corbridge An additional section will 
be included within future 
quarterly and annual 
reports to highlight 
proposed amendments to 
the plan, either in terms of 
additional audits 
proposed, audits deferred 
to the following year or 
audits deleted for 
whatever reason. This will 
enable the Audit & 
Governance Committee 
to approve such changes 
to the previously agreed 
Annual Audit Plan. 

Due date: 18 December 
2017 

P
age 53



Appendix 3 

 
PSIAS Ref 
(Appendix 

2) 
 

 
Report 

Rec 

 
Point For Consideration 

 
Responsible 

 
Action 

2450 

 

 

 

4 

 

 

In support of the Annual Opinion, consideration should be 
given to including the following in the Internal Audit Annual 
Report: 

 A positive statement as to whether or not there have 
been any limitations placed on the scope of audit work; 

 A specific reference to any other sources of assurance 
that are being relied upon in providing an overall 
Annual Opinion; 

 Details by service area of the approved plan, the work 
carried out, any revisions to the plan, and any planned 
work not delivered, explaining the impact of this on the 
overall opinion;   

 Details of the planned audits that remain in progress at 
the time the Annual Opinion is issued and any audits 
not started but carried forward into the following year’s 
plan; 

 Details of the planned audits that remain in progress 
and those audits not started but carried forward into 
the following year’s plan; 

 

Ian Corbridge All these points will be 
included within the 
Annual Report for 
2017/18. 

Due date: 31 July 2018 

                              

 

P
age 54



Appendix 3 

 
PSIAS 

Ref 
(Appendix 2) 

 
Report 

Rec 
 

 
Point For Consideration 

 
Responsible 

 
Action 

2450 
(cont.) 

  A specific statement that highlights whether there are 
any issues identified from the internal audit work 
undertaken, that are considered relevant in terms of 
the preparation of the AGS. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 55



Appendix 4 

Rochdale Borough Council – Additional Development Action Table 

During the review, the following additional issues for consideration were discussed with the Head of Internal Audit.  These issues do not 

specifically relate to conformance with the Standards / LGAN requirements.  They are however intended to assist with the overall efficiency and 

effectiveness of the internal audit service and are presented for information and consideration only. 

 
PSIAS 

Ref 
(Appendix 2) 

 
Report 

Rec 
 

 
Point For Consideration 

 
Responsible 

 
Action 

2330 5 Consideration should be given to the internal audit service 
reviewing its audit processes with a view to ensuring greater 
standardisation of working practices and documentation.  
One option to ensure greater consistency in terms of 
approach would be to acquire an audit management system 
that would enforce a standard way of working.   

Ian Corbridge 

 

Internal Audit 
management adopt a 
process of continual 
review and challenge of 
audit processes to ensure 
we align with best practice 
and the needs of the 
service and our 
stakeholders. Supporting 
documentation therefore 
evolves over time. As part 
of our current review we 
will ensure out of date 
audit documentation is 
archived to ensure 
consistent documentation 
and overall approach is 
maintained for all audit 
work going forward. 

Due date: 31 March 2018 

P
age 56



Appendix 4 

 
PSIAS 

Ref 
(Appendix 2) 

 
Report 

Rec 
 

 
Point For Consideration 

 
Responsible 

 
Action 

    Once the above review is 
complete further 
consideration will be given 
to the possibility of 
acquiring an audit 
management system 
based on a cost benefit 
analysis of the various 
products that are in the 
market. 

Due date: 31 December 
2018 

2400 6 In response to the feedback provided from a key 
stakeholder, the internal audit service may wish to consider 
the following points: 

 What it can do to further heighten its profile and raise 
awareness of any significant issues arising from 
internal audit work in order to provide wider learning 
across the Council; 

 Make better use of the Internal Audit pages on the 
Intranet by ensuring that relevant information and 
documents are published and kept up to date. 

Ian Corbridge Any such issues will be 
highlighted within the 
quarterly Report to 
Leadership that 
commenced from Quarter 
1 in 2017/18. Furthermore 
Internal Audit have 
already established a 
process of communicating 
any key issues that may 
have a more global impact 
via communications to all 
Directorates for 
management teams to 
cascade to relevant 

P
age 57



Appendix 4 

 
PSIAS 

Ref 
(Appendix 2) 

 
Report 

Rec 
 

 
Point For Consideration 

 
Responsible 

 
Action 

officers at they consider 
appropriate within their 
service. This enables 
lessons learned to be 
shared on a wider basis. 

Internal Audit intranet 
pages have recently been 
reviewed to ensure all 
documents are up to date. 
A further review will be 
undertaken to consider if 
any further documents 
can be added to inform 
stakeholders. 

Due date: 31 March 2018 

 

P
age 58



Report to Audit and Governance Committee

Date of Meeting 18th December 2017
Portfolio Councillor Allen Brett 

Cabinet Member for 
Corporate and Resources 

Report Author Martin Nixon
Public/Private Document Public

Risk Management Progress Report - Q2 2017/18

Executive Summary

1. This report provides a summary of Risk Management and Insurance work 
during Quarter 2 of the 2017/18 year.

The report provides a summary of significant progress made to update and 
improve risk registers across all Council Services, and describes risk scoring 
proposals put forward for use with Rochdale Locality Plan risk registers.

The Insurance Team update confirms advice is being given to the Highways 
Service in the essential process to comply with the Well-Managed Highway 
Infrastructure Code of Practice 2016. An additional Insurance Officer is to be 
recruited to reduce legal costs attached to claims. The key outcome of Claims 
Performance during quarter 2 was that savings of £1,034,571 across all claims 
settled were made through challenge by the team.

Recommendation

2. Consider the information confirming the level of assurance provided through 
the management of risk and insurance services.

Reason for Recommendation

3. This report is to enable the Audit and Governance Committee to scrutinise 
Risk Management and Insurance Team coverage during 2016/17.

Key Points for Consideration

4. Corporate Risk Register
The Leadership Team continue to proactively manage risks listed under the 
Corporate risk register. Risk issues are discussed by Directors regularly as an 
agenda item in Leadership Team meetings. The Corporate risk register is 
attached as Appendix 1.

Page 59

Agenda Item 10



5.

5.1

5.2

5.3

Service Risk Management

Service Risk Register Updates
All Council Services were required to review and update their risk registers in 
accordance with a new Risk Register Guidance paper distributed to risk 
champions in June 2017.

Almost all Services have now completed the required review process. In 
addition to the expected risk efficiency savings, decisions have also been 
taken to update the structure of Service risk registers as follows  –
a) New ICT Services risk register (previously written into the Information 

Governance register) has been established.
b) New Property, Technical and Building Surveying risk register has been 

established under the Neighbourhoods directorate.
c) New Governance risk register (previously included under the Legal 

Services register) now set up under the Resources directorate.

The risk review process is still ongoing under the Neighbourhood Services, 
Public Health and Public Protection services. The Risk Manager will assist 
these teams to complete their updates by the close of 2017. 

Risk Management Self Assessments
Assurance is provided to senior management that risk management is 
embedded within their service by completion of self-assessments annually for 
each Service area. The Services are assessed on factors such as the 
suitability of risks identified on the register, the effectiveness of risk control 
implementation, and the quality of risk review activity.

Self-assessment questionnaires were issued to all Service Risk Champions in 
December 2017. Results will be assessed by the Risk Manager in January 
2018, and then reported back to the relevant Senior Management Teams.

Integrated Care Risk Management
Progress to develop risk management activity under the Rochdale Locality 
Plan programme continued during quarter 2. The programme is aimed at 
addressing health and service integration in part through the pooling of 
budgets for health and social care services. The risks identified will be owned 
jointly by the Heywood Middleton and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCG), the Health Provider Services and the Council. Therefore combined 
governance and monitoring procedures are to be established to address the 
key risks to the operation of all projects.

The Risk Manager has coordinated with the CCG Performance Reporting team 
to propose a new risk scoring matrix for the Locality Plan risks. There is a need 
to agree a common risk strategy to overcome the variances between the 
different strategies currently in place at the Council and the CCG. This shared 
system will enable risk users in all of the partner organisations to score and 
assess their risks in a consistent way.

Page 60



6

6.1

               LIKELIHOOD

1 2 3 4   5

5 5 10 15 20 25

4 4 8 12 16 20

3 3 6 9 12 15

2 2 4 6 8 10IM
PA

C
T

1 1 2 3 4 5

A table of risk descriptors (see Appendix 2) has been designed to guide those 
scoring these risks, and to encourage consistency across Locality Plan risk 
scoring.

When agreed the new scoring system will be used to categorise risks into Red, 
Amber or Green priorities for reporting purposes. This matrix is considered to 
represent a balanced risk appetite, with no particular bias towards either Green 
or Red categories. The next stage of development of the integrated care risk 
registers will be the identification of additional risks to ensure risks associated 
with practical plan-delivery are added to the process. The Risk Manager will 
meet with the Leads of the 8 Locality Plan Themes to assist with the 
identification of these additional risks.

The Performance Manager software system used to record and coordinate risk 
registers is also under development to allow the synchronisation of the Locality 
Plan risks between separate Council and CCG servers. Testing of system 
modifications will take place in December 2017 – January 2018 to ensure Risk 
Owners in both organisations are able to access and update shared risks.

Risk Management Results

The table below shows the outcomes from the Risk Management Leadership 
dashboard for Quarter 1 2017/18 and Quarter 2 2017/18. 

Leadership Dashboard –
Risk Management

Result 
 Q1 

2017/18

Result 
 Q2 

2017/18

Target
2017/18

1. Number of Corporate Register Risks 10 10 Statement 
only

2. Number of Red risks on Corporate Register 0 0 0

Likelihood:
5    Almost certain
4    Probable
3    Possible
2    Unlikely
1    Remote

Impact:
5     Catastrophic
4     Major
3     Significant
2     Moderate
1     Minor

Impact:
5     Catastrophic
4     Major
3     Moderate
2     Minor
1     Negligible

Likelihood:
5    Almost certain
4    Probable
3    Possible
2    Unlikely
1    Remote

Page 61



7.

7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

3. Number of Red risks on Service Registers 0 0 0
4. Number of Risks where risk score has 
increased in last Quarter

0 0 0

Following the completion of the reviews of all Service risk registers there are 
no Red-rated risks to report.

Insurance Team

The reporting line for the Insurance Team was changed in June 2017 so that 
the team now forms part of the Internal Audit function in the Finance Service. A 
summary of the work completed by the Insurance Team from July 2017 to 
September 2017 is set out below.

Performance
The Insurance Team received a total of 113 new claims notifications during 
quarter 2. Typically, the majority of the new notifications were Highways claims 
(48) or Motor incidents (46), with the remainder comprising Employers 
Liability (4), Public Liability (13) and Property (2) claims.

A total of 116 claims were closed by the team during quarter 2. These claims 
will largely not be the same newly notified claims referred to under point 7.2. 
The claims handling process can run over a period of months or years, and 
therefore the team are working on a combination of new and ongoing cases. 
The majority of closed claims were Highways losses – at 74.1% of the total.

The table below provides a comparison of the final settled amounts for claims 
closed in the quarter against the highest reserve amounts for the same losses 
during the claims handling process. These statistics are a useful measure of 
the level of challenge put forward by the Insurance Team through their 
investigations, liaison with the relevant Services, or joint-efforts with solicitors 
to defend against legal proceedings.

Month Claims Closed Highest 
Reserve

Settled Saving

July 44 £191,567.54 £51,907.84 £139,659.70

August 34 £684,593.88 £359,772.82 £324,821.06

September 23 £633,270.50 £63,179.78 £570,090.72

Total £1,509,431.92 £474,860.44 £1,034,571.48

The overall implication from the table is that the team coordinated a total 
saving of £1,034,571 on settled claims costs during this quarter. The largest 
reduction for an individual claim was £109,209.75 made at the conclusion of a 
Public Liability incident.

Examples of claims savings –
a) The claimant was put to ‘strict proof’ due to reservations over the 

circumstances of a slip/trip on pothole claim which lead to the failure of 
legal proceedings. £26,604.00 saving.

Page 62



7.5

7.6

8

b) Following Insurance Team investigations, a section 58 defence was applied 
to a slip on a highway defect claim. Section 58 of the Highways Act enables 
local authorities to defend claims on the basis that they have taken 
reasonable measures to ensure defects are found and dealt with quickly. 
£16,227.00 saving.

Well-Managed Highway Infrastructure Code of Practice 2016

The revised Well-Managed Highway Code of Practice was released on 28 
October 2016, with all local authorities required to have implemented the 
required ‘risk-based’ approach to highways asset management within two 
years of the release date.

The Rochdale Highways service is participating in an AGMA working group to 
produce a regional code of practice. The new UK guidance promotes a 
consistent approach by neighbouring authorities to avoid erratic methods and 
conditions between adjacent areas. A revised Rochdale policy will also be 
issued by Highways to confirm how the new code will be implemented in the 
borough.

The Insurance Team are contributing to this process by sharing 
recommendations on items to be included in the revised policy. Possible 
improvements have been identified in respect of the handling of damaged 
roadside barriers, tree roots, and highway inspections obstructed by parked 
cars. These recommendations should ultimately improve the Council’s 
maintenance procedures and subsequently our chances to defend future 
claims.

Recruitment of new Insurance Officer

A business case was put forward to promote the recruitment of an additional 
insurance officer to the Insurance Team. It was agreed that the added 
resource would reduce certain insurance costs incurred over the long-term and 
generate a net saving for the Council. Interviews are planned for January 2018 
and the new recruit will increase the team to 3 officers – a Senior Insurance 
Officer and 2 Insurance Officers.

Priorities for the Next Quarter

1) Risk Management self-assessment questionnaires to be completed and 
results reported to senior management.

2) The continued development of risk registers for the Rochdale Locality Plan 
Themes.

3) Recruitment of new Insurance Officer.

Costs and Budget Summary

9. Not applicable.

Page 63



Risk and Policy Implications

If Risk Management recommendations are not implemented, the Council will 
be exposed to the risks set out in the relevant Risk Management reports. 
These risks will be mitigated by completion of the actions agreed with 
management and summarised within this report. 

10.

Consultation

11. The risk controls or development action points arising from this report are 
agreed in consultation with senior management and officers within each 
Service area.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None

For Further Information Contact: Martin Nixon, Tel: 01706925415, 
martin.nixon@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 64



Appendix 1 05 December 2017

Wider Leadership Team - Corporate Risk Register Risk Summary

CRR0001 - Failure to maintain or gaps within corporate governance lead to risk of litigation, fraud/ malpractice, poor decision making or judicial review, causing serious 
service and financial failure (Compliance/ Legal) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

David Wilcock David Wilcock Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 2 6

30 Jun 2017

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR1002 Code of Corporate Governance communicated, understood and followed David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 17

 *    CRR1004 Governance Board providing challenge to and co-ordination of all governance 
issues   

David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 17

 *    CRR1010 Contract procedure rules which are clear, understood and being followed David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 17

 *    CRR1011 Codes of Conduct for Members and Officers which are clear, understood and 
followed

David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 17

 *    CRR1009 Scheme of delegation which is clear, understood and being followed Elaine Newsome Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 17

 *    CRR1007 Independent assurance provided by external assessors (Ofsted, Care Quality 
Commission etc.)   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 17

 *    CRR1006 Independent assurance provided by External Audit   David Wilcock Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Sep 17

 *    CRR1012 Performance Management system which promotes accountability and 
outcome monitoring is embedded

John Rooney Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jan 18

 *    CRR1005 Independent assurance provided by Internal Audit   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 18

 *    CRR1003 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 18

 *    CRR1001 Oversight and challenge by an effective Audit and Governance Committee Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 18

 *    CRR1008 Anti-fraud and Corruption Strategy communicated, understood and followed Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jun 18

 *    CRR1013 Information Governance Framework which supports compliance with all data 
control requirements is embedded

John Rooney Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 06 Jul 18

P
age 65



CRR0002 - A catastrophic event and lack of organisational resilience leads to inability to deliver our services, to then support and protect the wider community and to rebuild 
the infrastructure (Operational) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

John Rooney Mark Widdup Active Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 4 3 12

31 Mar 2018

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR2005 Emergency plan, refeshed quarterly, communicated and understood    Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2006 Themed plans (i.e. rest centres, flooding, Turner Brothers site) for specific 
purposes   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2007 Training, briefing and exercises carried out for Silver and Forward Incident 
officers

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2008 Multi-agency resilience forum in place to debrief incidents and conduct 
exercises   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2009 Review procedures for testing of ICT system to improve processes and 
resilience

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2001 Corporate business continuity plan, refreshed and checked for accuracy 
quarterly   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2002 Service level business continuity plans, refreshed and checked for accuracy 
quarterly   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2004 Periodic corporate business continuity plan dry run exercises   Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2003 Periodic training and briefing to service business continuity leads undertaken   Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Mar 17

 *    CRR2010 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 18

CRR0003 - Budget reductions required do not leave enough budget to deliver statutory services and to achieve balanced budget in 2016/17 and 2017/18 leading to a failure 
in legal duty (Strategic) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Victoria Bradshaw Victoria Bradshaw Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 3 9

01 Apr 2018

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR3005 Corporate Plan established which provides strategic direction for services   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 17

 *    CRR3010 External audit financial resilience assessment   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Sep 17

 *    CRR3001 Medium Term Financial Strategy updated bi-annually and approved by 
Cabinet and Council   

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 17

 *    CRR3002 Regular reports to Wider Leadership, Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny, 
Council on budget position locally and nationally

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 17

 *    CRR3003 Budget monitoring embedded which pro-actively highlights financial 
challenges   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 17

P
age 66



 *    CRR3004 Treasury Management Policy embedded and adhered to Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 18

 *    CRR3007 s151 Officer Report presented to Council annually prior to budget setting   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 18

 *    CRR3009 Corporate approach to addressing budget challenges (offices and Members 
working together)   

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 18

 *    CRR3008 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 29 Jun 18

 *    CRR3006 Organisational Development Strategy in place which aligns strategy, people 
and processes   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 24 Jun 15 30 Jun 17

CRR0004  - Ineffective financial management and resilience leads to the Council significantly overspending the annual budget (Strategic) - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Victoria Bradshaw Victoria Bradshaw Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 2 6

30 Jun 2017

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR4006 Organisational Development Strategy in place which aligns strategy, people 
and processes   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 17

 *    CRR4005 Corporate Plan established which provides strategic direction for services   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 17

 *    CRR4010 External audit financial resilience assessment   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Sep 17

 *    CRR4001 Medium Term Financial Strategy updated bi-annually and approved by 
Cabinet and Council   

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 17

 *    CRR4002 Regular reports to Wider Leadership, Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny, 
Council on budget position locally and nationally

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 17

 *    CRR4003 Budget monitoring embedded which pro-actively highlights financial 
challenges   

Julie Murphy Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 17

 *    CRR4004 Treasury Management Policy embedded and adhered to Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 18

 *    CRR4007 s151 Officer Report presented to Council annually prior to budget setting   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 18

 *    CRR4009 Corporate approach to addressing budget challenges (officers and Members 
working together)   

Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Apr 18

 *    CRR4008 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 29 Jun 18

P
age 67



CRR0005 - Failure of, or lack of compliance with, health and safety systems leads to harm to an individual and a corporate manslaughter/ homicide conviction (Compliance/ 
Legal) - (Operational)
Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Sheila Downey Sheila Downey Active Inherent 4 3 12

Residual 4 2 8

30 Jun 2017

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR5006 Member training regularly updated, fully attended and understood   Elaine Newsome Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 17

 *    CRR5002 Learning and development provided to whole workforce, primarily through e-
learning   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 17

 *    CRR5003 Comprehensive health and well-being policies in place and adhered to   Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 17

 *    CRR5001 Corporate Health and Safety Policy is clear, understood and being followed   Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 17

 *    CRR5004 In house team of Health and Safety Advisers who link into the Central Health 
and Safety Committee   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 17

 *    CRR5005 Liaison with Health and Safety Executive to ensure risk and issues highlighted 
and addressed   

Rosemary Barker Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Jun 17

 *    CRR5007 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 29 Jun 18

CRR0006 - Risk that Council and Devolution  Manchester priorities are not fully aligned - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Steve Rumbelow Steve Rumbelow Active Inherent 4 3 12

Residual 4 2 8

30 Jul 2016

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR6001 Chief Executive is a member of AGMA WLT (Meeting of GM Chief Executives)   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR6002 Leader is a member of formally constituted GM Combined Authority with other 
Council Leaders and Interim Mayor   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR6003 Elected members from Rochdale BC sit on Scrutiny Panel   Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 30 Jun 16

 *    CRR6004 Officer representation on working groups dealing with CA/AGMA/Devolution 
issues as appropriate   

Steve Rumbelow Control - In Place 14 Jul 15 30 Jun 16

P
age 68



CRR0007 - Risk of a breakdown in community stability (Operational)                   - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

John Rooney Mark Widdup Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 4 3 12

31 Mar 2018

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR7001 Community and Cohesion Strategy communicated and embedded   Mark Dalzell Control - Being 
Developed

23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR7002 Community Cohesion Pledge signed by elected Members and Community 
Representatives   

Mark Dalzell Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR7003 Extensive partnerships developed and maintained enabling networking and 
intelligence sharing eg. Active citizens and multi-faith forums.

Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Dec 17

 *    CRR7004  Joint working with Greater Manchester authorities to monitor and mitigate 
risks    

Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Dec 17

 *    CRR7007 Cohesion Hub and Consequence Management process in place Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Dec 17

 *    CRR7008 Weekly tension monitoring and trigger plans in place Sajjad Miah Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Dec 17

 *    CRR7009 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 29 Jun 18

CRR0008 - Risk of serious harm to or death of a child due to the act or omission by Council employees (Compliance/ Legal)           - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Gail Hopper Gail Hopper Active Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 5 3 15

30 Apr 2017

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR8001 Local Safeguarding Children Board in place which provides robust challenge   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR8003 Regional Support and Challenge including Peer Reviews Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR8004 Performance/ Quality Assurance Framework is fully embedded   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR8005 Ongoing and robust management of external/ commissioned service providers Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR8006 Effective management oversight and supervision of staff   Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR8009 Critical Incident Reporting Framework in place and embedded Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR8010 Workforce Development Strategy - training and support provided to staff Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR8011 Local Authority provides advice/ monitoring and training on safe practice in 
schools

Gail Hopper Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR8002 Independent Ofsted inspections   Sandra Bowness Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 31 Jan 18

 *    CRR8012 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Mar 18

P
age 69



 *    CRR8007 Early Help Strategy is refreshed and re-launched   Sandra Bowness Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 18

CRR0009 - Risk of serious harm to or death of a vulnerable adult due to the act or omission by Council employees (Compliance Legal)  - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

Sheila Downey Sheila Downey Active Inherent 5 4 20

Residual 5 3 15

30 Apr 2017

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR9002 Independent reviews by the Care Quality Commission (CQC)   Dianne David Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 15 Aug 17

 *    CRR9003 Quality assurance checks   Dianne David Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 15 Aug 17

 *    CRR9007 Robust quality assurance/ contract management procedures Dianne David Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 15 Aug 17

 *    CRR9010 Ongoing sharing of intelligence information with CQC and other partners Dianne David Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 15 Aug 17

 *    CRR9001 Adult Safeguarding Board in place which provides robust challenge   Sheila Downey Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 15 Aug 17

 *    CRR9008 Regional support and peer challenge    Sheila Downey Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 15 Aug 17

 *    CRR9004 PDRs, one-to-ones and supervision of staff, self assessment of practice 
standards applied across the service   

Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 15 Aug 17

 *    CRR9005 Embed adult social care safeguarding policy to ensure worker expectations 
regarding safeguarding practice are clearly defined and communicated  

Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 15 Aug 17

 *    CRR9006 Robust and regular safeguarding and case file audits   Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 15 Aug 17

 *    CRR9009 Recruitment and retention plan for qualified social workers Sheila Downey Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 15 Aug 17

 *    CRR9011 Training strategy in place for the Service Steven Blezard Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 15 Aug 17

 *    CRR9012 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 29 Jun 18

P
age 70



CRR0010 -  Failure to take opportunities for growth leading to a lack of investment in the Borough and lower levels of regeneration and prosperity       - (Operational)

Next Review Officer Risk Owner Risk Status  Impact  Likelihood  Score Risk Score Risk Review Date

John Searle John Searle Active Inherent 4 4 16

Residual 3 3 9

01 Jan 2018

Controls Control Owner Status Adoption Date Review Date

 *    CRR10004 Asset Management Plan is established, monitored and regularly updated   Peter Gregory Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 30 Apr 17

 *    CRR10001 Medium Term Financial Plan is comprehensive and regularly updated   Victoria Bradshaw Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Oct 17

 *    CRR10006 Maximise opportunities for good news   Susan Ayres Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 29 Nov 17

 *    CRR10007 Early warning protocol agreed for identifying potential bad news Susan Ayres Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 28 Dec 17

 *    CRR10002 Oversight and challenge of major projects and decisions by Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee   

Mark Robinson Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jan 18

 *    CRR10003 Programme/ project management principles are applied consistently   Mark Robinson Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 01 Jan 18

 *    CRR10005 Risk Management Strategy embedded and supports all decision making   Ian Corbridge Control - In Place 23 Jun 15 29 Jun 18

P
age 71



P
age 72



Impact
Scoring 1 - Negligible 2 - Minor 3 - Moderate 4 - Major 5 - Catastrophic

Patient 
Experience

Unsatisfactory 
patient experience / 
clinical outcome – 
readily resolvable.

Unsatisfactory patient 
experience / clinical 
outcome – short term 
recovery < 1 week.

Unsatisfactory patient 
experience / clinical 
outcome – short term 
recovery 1 week to 2 
months OR wider 
impact involving 
multiple patients.

Unsatisfactory patient 
experience / clinical 
outcome – long term 
recovery, > 2 months 
OR wider impact 
involving above 20 
patients.

Unsatisfactory patient 
experience / clinical 
outcome – continued, 
ongoing long term 
effects.

Implications 
for 

Achievement 
of Service 
Objectives

Brief disruption to 
non-crucial service 

area.

Minor impact on 
achievement of 

objectives.

Disruption to services 
managed within 

Project.

Moderate impact on 
achievement of 

objectives.

Disruption to services 
has adverse effect on 

delivery of Theme.

Significant impact on 
achievement of Theme 

objective.

Disruption to delivery 
of Theme-level 
service, either 

multiple areas or 
protracted period.

Major impact on 
achievement of 

Theme objectives.

Severe disruption that 
would destabilise whole 

Transformation 
programme.

Catastrophic impact on 
achievement of 

overarching Locality Plan 
objectives.

Financial
Minimal effect 
contained within 
Project team.
Negligible loss.

Financial objectives 
still recoverable within 
the project.
Small impact – the 
lesser of 5% or 
£20,000 pa. increase 
to project cost or 
reduction in savings 
realised

Moderate Impact 
contained within the 
Theme.
Impact – the lesser of 
15% or £50,000 pa.

Major impact causing 
jeopardy to the 
Theme.
Impact – the lesser of 
20% or £100,000 pa.

Financial impact could 
destabilise the whole 
Transformation 
programme.
Impact – the lesser of 
50% or £500,000 pa.

Health & 
Safety

No harm or injuries 
but incident has 
occurred.

Minor injuries 
requiring non-
professional 
intervention.
No time lost from 
work

Moderate injury 
requiring professional 
intervention. RIDDOR 
Incidents reportable to 
the HSE.

.Excessive injuries 
leading to long term 
incapacity/disability.

Incident leading to 
fatalit(ies) or irreversible 
health effects. 

Statutory 
Duty/ 
Obligations

No or minimal 
breech of 
guidance/statutory 
duty.
Individual  claims

Breech of statutory 
legislation causing 
reduced performance 
rating.

Single breech in 
statutory duty. Possible 
external 
recommendations or 
improvement notice.

Enforcement action 
caused due to 
multiple breeches in 
statutory duty. 
Possible 
improvement notices.

Prosecution caused due 
to multiple breeches in 
statutory duty. Complete 
systems change 
required.

Information 
Governance

Low level DPA 
compliance 
incident.
Including – 
0-10 data subjects 
affected, no media 
coverage OR no 
sensitive personal 
data.

Investigated 
internally.  Possible 
complaint or lower 
level regulatory 
action.
Including – 
11-100 data subjects 
affected, local media 
coverage OR low 
level information at 
risk.

Investigated externally 
with the possibility of 
regulatory action.
Including – 
101-1,000 data 
subjects affected, 
Regional media 
coverage OR detailed 
or confidential 
information at risk.

Investigated 
externally with the 
likelihood of 
regulatory action
Including – 
1,001-100,000 data 
subjects affected, 
National media 
coverage OR detailed 
or confidential 
information at risk.

Mandatory reporting to 
ICO using Health SIRI 
Guidance.  Investigated 
externally with the 
likelihood of regulatory 
action
Including – 
100,000 or more data 
subjects affected, 
National media coverage, 
OR
detailed or confidential 
information at risk

Page 73



Likelihood Scoring

Description Probability

5 -        Almost 
Certain More than 90% chance of occurrence

4  - Probable More than 75% chance of occurrence

3  - Possible 51% - 75% chance of occurrence

2  - Unlikely 10% - 50% chance of occurrence

1  - Remote Less than 10% chance of occurrence

Reputation

Complaint/rumour 
from an individual or 
small group. 
Contained within 
Project or Theme.

Short-term local 
media coverage and 
drop in local public 
confidence.

Long-term local media 
coverage. Adverse 
effect on local public 
confidence of a 
significant and 
persistent nature.

Adverse national 
media coverage 
causing a temporary 
drop in national public 
confidence.

Adverse and persistent 
national media coverage 
causing total loss of 
public confidence. 
Possible officer(s) and/or 
Member resignations.

Human 
Resources

Low staffing 
situation that has 
negligible effect on 
service quality.

Low staffing situation 
with impact contained 
within Project team.

Short-term low staffing 
situation with wider 
impact causing 
disruption to delivery of 
Theme.

Long-term low 
staffing situation 
causing uncertain 
delivery of Theme 
objectives. Possible 
unsafe staffing levels 
or competence.

Severe low staffing 
situation causing the non-
delivery of Theme 
objectives. Ongoing 
unsafe staffing levels or 
competence.

Page 74



Document is Restricted

Page 75

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 77

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 80

By virtue of paragraph(s) 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Internal Audit Quarter 2 Report 2017/18
	7 Grant Thornton Annual Audit Letter for Rochdale Borough Council
	8 Grant Thornton - Grants Letter 2016/17
	9 Peer Review of Internal Audit
	Append. 1 for Peer Review of Internal Audit

	10 Risk Management Progress Report - Q2 2017/18
	Append. 1 for Risk Management Progress Report - Q2 2017/18
	Append. 2 for Risk Management Progress Report - Q2 2017/18

	12 Code of conduct update
	13 Legal update
	closing


